
State of Arkansas Department of Human Services
710-25-074-Intensive In-Home Services and Transition Support for Young Adult Services 
Attachment B
Written Questions & Answers

Question 
ID

Reference (page number, section number, 
paragraph)

Specific Language Question
Answers

Example Page 7, section 1.15,  C J. Vendors may submit multiple bid May vendors submit more than one bid? yes See section 1.15, J

1
The scope of work for intensive in-home services states that Licensed 
Clinical Consultants can support up to eight (8) teams (page 11). How 
many five-person teams does DHS anticipate a provider creating?

Monthly estimate of 85 referrals

2 Are intensive in-home services currently being provided? Yes, statewide

3 Does DHS anticipate awarding one provider for the entire state, or 
multiple providers for intensive in-home services?

Multiple Providers, see Section 1.3 of the 
Solicitation. 

4 Will applicants be penalized for not having Practitioners for intensive in-
home services identified before submitting a proposal?

DHS would not be able to award points on 
evaluation for practitioner information if this is 
not provided by the Contractor.

5 Page 10, section 2.4, C. 4. Contractor shall accept referrals outside of their primary contracted area 
contingent on their availability of staff and contract funding.

Is this proposal for the entire state? For example, no specific counties 
need to be identified as service areas in the RFQ. 

We are seeking service for the entire state, but 
Contractors may request certain counties or 
areas. Refer to addendum 4.

6 Attachment I, Questions 2&5

“Prospective Contractor” means a responsible offeror who submits a 
proposal in response to this solicitation. “Prospective Contractor,” 
“Contractor,” “bidder,” “vendor,” and “respondent” are used synonymously in 
this document.

There are questions using the term "vendor" and "contractor" related to 
practitioners having a license. Are these the same questions? 

Vendor and Contractor are used synonymously 
in this document. Practitioners refer to the staff 
doing the work with youth and families.

7 Response Packet, Page 7,  E. 5 Would it be acceptable to address two EBPs within the same 
submission?  Yes

8 Page 18, section 3.1 OP will review each response packet to verify submission Requirements 
have been met.

Do we need to respond to both, IIHS and the transitional youth 
program? Will organizations responding to both be scored higher? 

There is not a preference or benefit to 
submitting for one or both services.

Instructions
This Response Template must be used for submission of written questions.  All questions should provide the requested information. Those that do not, may not be answered by DHS.  The Vendor may add as 
many lines as needed.  DHS would strongly prefer the Vendor to ask multi-part questions as individual questions on seperate lines.

Instructions:  Complete all cells of each question asked in the Table below.  Clearly identify the referenced section or text.
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9 Page 8, section 2.4
Contractor shall ensure that certain EBP services are Provided by 
Practionioners holding a master's degree. All Staff will have regular clinical 
consultation from a licensed consultant.

Can bachelors level be used if the EBP allows? Yes. Refer also to Addendum 4.

10 Page 2, section 1.8, 4. | Page 7, section 1.22

DO NOT include any other documents or ancillary information, such as a 
cover letter, promotional, or marketing information. | In accordance with 
provisions of State Procurement Law, specifically 19 CAR § 1-527(b), a 
Contractor's past
performance with the State may be used to determine if the Contractor is 
“responsible.” Proposals submitted by
Contractors determined to be non-responsible shall be disqualified

Can Recomendation Letters be included as an attachment? Recommendation letters are not required and 
will not count towards points.

11 Attachment I, Client History Form
"The State reserves the right to verify the accuracy of these answers by 
contacting any of the listed clients, and all applicable clients must be listed. 
Omission of a client will constitute a failure to complete this form."

Can clarity be provided regarding where in this attachment (or 
elsewhere in the response) clients should be listed, what clients should 
be listed (i.e. all clients provider currently contracts with, a certain 
number of clients?), and what information about clients is requested 
(i.e. services provided, number of years contracting with agency, 
name/title/email/phone number for client contact)?

Client lists are not being requested. For 
purposes of this form, the "client" is not an 
individual but the entity which held the contract. 
By way of explanation, in the Contract resulting 
from this RFQ, Arkansas DHS will be the client.

12 Attachment I, Client History Form, Question 2

Vendor’s Practitioners must be licensed in a mental health field (LCSW, 
LPC, LAC, etc.) and have 
a minimum of two (2) years’ experience in crisis intervention, individual, 
family, and/or group 
therapy and a minimum of twelve (12) hours of continuing education. For 
verification purposes, 
Vendor must provide a copy of its Practitioners’ license with response 
submission. Please briefly 
describe the scope of listed experience and continuing education. If there is 
none, please state 
“none.”

Should respondent provide copies of requested information for each 
licensed practioner on staff or simply share requested information for 
highest ranking practioners (i.e. the Clinical Consultant role)?

Copies should be provided for all practitioners 
along with the requested experience and 
number of current CE hours.

13 Attachment I, Client History Form, Question 4

The Transition Support for Young Adult Services Contractor must meet the 
following requirements:
Practitioners must possess, at minimum, a bachelor’s degree; however, 
masters’ degrees are 
preferred. Qualifying degrees include social work, counseling, psychology or 
a related field. For 
verification purposes, Practitioners must provide a copy of their degree with 
response submission. 
Contractor must have a minimum of two (2) years’ experience delivering an 
evidence-based practice 
designed for a young adult population, and experience with oversight of a 
clinical model with 
evidence-based practices. For verification purposes, please briefly describe 
the scope of listed 
experience. If there is none, please state “none.”

Should respondent provide copies of requested information for each 
practioner on staff or simply share requested information for highest 
ranking practioners (i.e. the Clinical Consultant role)?

Copies should be provided for all practitioners 
along with the requested experience and 
number of current CE hours.
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14 Attachment I, Client History Form, Question 5

 Contractor’s Practitioners must be licensed in a mental health field (LCSW, 
LPC, LAC, etc.) and 
have a minimum of two (2) years’ experience in crisis intervention, individual, 
family, and/or group 
therapy and a minimum of twelve (12) hours of continuing education. For 
verification purposes, 
Contractor must provide a copy of its Practitioners’ license with response 
submission and please 
briefly describe the scope of listed experience. If there is none, please state 
“none.”

Should respondent provide copies of requested information for each 
licensed practioner on staff or simply share requested information for 
highest ranking practioners (i.e. the Clinical Consultant role)?

Copies should be provided for all practitioners 
along with the requested experience and 
number of current CE hours.

15 RFP Solicitation Document, Section 1.18, 
Subsection B

1.18 QUALIFICATION AND AWARD PROCESS
B. Discussions and Negotiations
Bid Solicitation Document Solicitation No. 710-25-074
If the agency so chooses, it shall also have the right to enter into discussion 
with the qualifying vendor(s), to 
further define contractual details. All such discussions shall be conducted at 
the sole discretion of the State and 
may be conducted at any lawful time of the State’s choosing. The State shall 
solely determine the items to be 
discussed or negotiated.
If discussions or negotiations fail to result in a contract, the negotiation 
process may be repeated until an 
anticipated successful vendor(s) has been determined or an award made, or 
until such time the State decides 
not to move forward with an award.
The State may elect to request best and final offers. Any best and final offer 
request made by the State will be 
conducted in accordance with Arkansas Code § 19-11-230 for contractors 
determined to be responsible and 
reasonably susceptible of being selected for award. 

Can DCFS provide clarity on if awards will be made by region or 
county?

DCFS wants to have providers for statewide 
coverage and plan to award to multiple vendors - 
assuming that one vendor will not be able to 
provide statewide coverage.

16 Page 2, Section 1.3 "OP intends to award a contract to multiple contractors."

Is there a determined cap on number of contracts to issue? Is there a 
guaranteed mininum number of referrals to be sent to contracted 
vendors? If so, please explain number of guaranteed referrals and 
frequency.

No, there is not a cap on the number of 
contracts to issue. There is not a guaranteed 
number of referrals.

17 Page 3, Section 1.8.B. Pricing:
How will the pricing be determined post award? Will it be a uniform rate 
for all awarded providers or will it be negotiated individually? If so, is 
there a previous rate or range that can be shared for reference?

The daily rate will be negotiated with each 
anticipated awardee with consideration to the 
size of the area(s) and area(s) of expertise.

18 Page 8, Section 2.1 This Requet for Qualification is issued…to obtain responses and a 
contract(s) for IIHS and TSYAS.

Is there a preference by DHS and/or DCFS for vendors to propose 
both services rather than only one? Will it benefit a vendor in the 
evaluation of proposals to submit for both services rather than just 
one?

There is not a preference or benefit to 
submitting for one or both services.

19 Page 8, Section 2.3.A.4 "Prospective Contractor must provide a copy of its' Practitioner's license with 
response submission and must complete Attachment I Client History Form"

For interested vendors who are registered to do business in the State 
of Arkansas but do not yet provide operations, will you accept 
Practitioner licenses from another state? If not, how would a new 
vendor meet this requirement?

Bidder(s) would need to provide the current 
licenses and documentation showing that the 
Arkansas licenses have been applied for.

710-25-074 Attachment B Written Questions & Answers 3 of 4



20 Page 9, Section 2.3.A.4

"Contractor must have a minimum of two (2) years’ experience delivering an 
evidence-based practice (EBP)designed for a young adult population, and 
experience with oversight of a clinical model with evidence-basedpractices. 
For verification purposes, Prospective Contractor must complete Attachment 
I-Client History Form."

This states "contractor" rather than "Practioner". Can you confirm that 
this is seeking verfiication that the vendor (rather than staff) have 
experience delivering an Evidence Based Practice? Will verfication of 
providing this in a state other than Arkansas suffice?

Section 2.3.A.4 refers to the contractor/vendor, 
but Section 2.3.A.5 refers to the staff who are 
providing the service (Practitioner). Yes, 
experience in another state would suffice.

21

Page 9, Section 2.4.A.b.

"Contractor shall ensure that certain EBP services are provided by 
Practitioners holding a master’s degree. All staff will have regular clinical 
consultation from a licensed consultant."

In the event that an EBP allows for a level of expertise less than a 
master's degree, is it permissable for the staff to provide the EBP, 
providing they have a bachelor's degree and are supervised as stated 
in the RFQ?

Yes. Refer also to Addendum 4.

22
Page 9, Section 2.4.A.2 and 2.4.A.3 Clinical Supervisors and Clinical Consultants

Do these need to be two distinct positions or can they be fulfilled by the 
same qualified staff person?

They can be the same person if the highest 
qualifications are met.

23

Page 11, Section 2.4.D.1.c

"The initial authorization for IIHS shall be for six (6) months. Requests for 
extensions of IIHS must be submitted in writing to the DCFS In-Home 
Program Manager."

What is the duration of extensions beyond the initial 6 month 
authorization? If it is monthly, will the provider receive the authorization 
before the 1st day of the newly authorized period to ensure continuity of 
service rather than retroactive authorizations?

Currently the extensions are typically given for 
30 days and should be requested prior to the 
expiration of the approved time.

24

Page 16, Section 2.7.F

"Failure to meet the minium Peformance Standards as specified may result 
in the assessment of damages, including performance standard language 
"Contractor shall accept referrals for diversion and reunification cases for 
IIHS and for TSYAS according to the requirements stated in the SOW."

If a vendor refuses a referral due to internal issues such as staffing or 
capacity, or if they are unable to serve a referral due to geographic 
distance, is that considered a failure to meet the minimum Performance 
Standards and will they be subject to the assessment of damages for 
not accepting referrals?

Refer to RFQ Section 2.4 Scope of Work, 
Subsection C. REFERRALS.

25

Page 18, Section 3.1 Technical Score

Is the "Individual Score Worksheet" the same as the "Information for 
Evaluation"? If not, could you please provide the Individual Score 
Worksheet provided to the raters of this proposal?

Refer to Section 3.1 in the RFQ Solicitation 
document.                                                        
Yes, the information in the Individual Score 
Worksheet is the same as the Information for 
Evaluation.

26

Response Packet 710-25-074 Text fields for response

Is there a character limit to the fields in the response packet? If so, 
what is the limit and is it by character or by word? Is there a preferred 
font and type size?

No, there is not a character limit or preferred 
font and type size. Prospective Contractor may 
expand the space under each item/question in 
the Information for Evaluation to provide a 
complete response.

27
General Scope of Work n/a

Can the provider determine the area or region to be served (i.e.; where 
they can serve referrals) and not be assessed damages if they are 
unable to accept referrals outside of that area or region?

Yes, Prospective Contractor may select areas 
in which services can be provided. Refer also to 
Addendum 4.

28

General Scope of Work n/a

For rural, frontier or historically underserved areas, is it permissable to 
serve families virtually to ensure the required level of practitioner is 
met? Is there a possibility consider or negotiate potential variations to 
the scope of work, such as reducing practitioner qualifications, if 
necessary and documented to serve referred clients in these 
understaffed and underserved areas?

No.

29
 IIHS Referral Process for Prevention Youth  "The case is served for up to 6 months before closing.."

Does the authorized 6 months for a referral begin on the day of referral 
or does it begin on the first day of intake with the family?

Contractor shall begin billing the daily rate once 
the client is successfully contacted and an 
appointment is scheduled.
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